Material for Online Appendix 

Appendix A1: Survey questions on pharmaceutical tendering in countries with expanding healthcare coverage (CEHCs). The survey was distributed to 17 CEHCs as an online survey.
	Questions

	1. Is there any tendering of pharmaceutical or other products performed in your country? 

	a. If yes, for which type of pharmaceuticals? 

e.g. (In general for all reimbursable pharmaceuticals, vaccines, pharmaceuticals against communicable diseases, etc.) 

	2. Which institutions are procuring pharmaceuticals in your country? 

(e.g. Hospital Purchasing Agencies, Tendering Department of National Health Service, Ministry of Finance, etc.)?

	3. Please indicate the legal basis for tendering in your country and give specific legal provisions, for instance for specific tendering limits/financial thresholds in your country

	4. Please describe the actual tendering procedure/methodology applied and the criteria for selecting winner (please indicate if there is any criteria differences between single source products/multiple suppliers and patented/off-patented 

	5. Is there any MCDA (multi criteria decision analysis) or differentiated categories apply in your tender not only in pharma but also in other industry?

	6. Please indicate the frequency of the tenders and the duration of contracts 

	7. What are, if any, the future changes concerning the tendering process in your country?


Appendix A2: Checklist for writing a tender specification (adapted from [44])

	#
	Section
	Content
	Check

	01
	Title
	Theme and unique identification of the specification 
	

	02
	Table of contents
	For orientation in the specifications
	

	03
	Introduction
	Brief explanation of the context, the application, purpose, or function of the items required
	

	04
	Scope
	Extent and limitations of the call and requirements 
· The expected goods and services (incl. install, commission, training, or documentation as required); 

· the duration of the contract 

· anticipated demand for the contract period;  

· anything that is not required which is unusual (such as equipment or software which will be available to or must be used by the contractor) 

A full specification of each element in the Scope should be part of the Statement of Requirements 
	

	05
	Background 
	Background / explanatory information on the requirements - depending on the complexity
	

	06
	Service & environ-mental conditions
	Section on service conditions and environment as necessary
	

	07
	Statement of Requirements (SoR)
	· description of expected outputs, functionality, and performance requirements; 

· performance measures, standards and benchmarks that are expected to be monitored during the period of the contract. 

Define the SoR for goods and the SoR for services as expected. Consider the following items:

· Outputs 

· Performance measures 

· Targets 

· Management + administration of contract

· Hand-over process 

· Transition process from previous contract

· Product and performance criteria 

· Acceptance testing 

· Packaging, technology, systems, and management techniques 

· Support services 

· Sale of assets and transfer of personnel 
	

	08
	Quality Requirements
	· Quality assurance (QA) checks to be undertaken by the contractor, expected certifications, and risk management

· Description of the measures for  

· Assessing the conformity of the product to the specification

· assessing the supplier’s compliance to quality assurance levels

· potential additional testing procedures
	

	09
	Security
	As required
	

	10
	Training
	As required
	

	11
	Documentation
	As required
	

	12
	Implementation Timetable
	Proposed schedule, including commencement date, milestones, completion of deliverables, and a completion date
	

	13
	Glossary
	As required
	

	14
	Attachments
	As required
	


Appendix A3: Characteristics of a good specification (adapted from [44])

	Clear
	Easy to understand.

	Specific
	Detailed and describing exactly what is required. There can be no confusion. Enough information to specify but no unnecessary information, which may confuse.

	Accurate
	A specification should say or specify exactly what the requirements are, not more or less. Where possible, define the expected outputs or functions to be fulfilled rather than listing specific technical requirements. Up-to-date information!

	Complete
	Include all aspects

	Essential requirements
	It includes those things that are essential to what is required, and critical to the performance. Bids without these should not be considered. 

	Desirable requirements
	It includes those things that are desirable but NOT critical to performance

	Measurable
	Includes evaluation criteria so that we can judge if our requirements have been met. Each criterion is rated for its importance in the evaluation (weight).

	Function
	Definition of what the product is expected to do rather than the technical requirements. Defines the needs and purpose which need to be met.

	Consistency
	Specifications for similar requirements should be much the same: Develop a standard template for each type of product or service.
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